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DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 

Lakewood, Colorado 80228-1898 
Tel: 303-987-0835   800-741-3254 

Fax: 303-987-2032 
 

NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA 
 

Board of Directors                                    Office                                                     Term/Expires 
Laura H. Newman President 2023/May 2023 
Donald D. Cabrera Treasurer 2023/May 2023 
Jeffrey D. Jones Asst. Secretary 2022/May 2022 
David H. Smith Asst. Secretary 2022/May 2022 
Todd T. Wenskoski Asst. Secretary 2022/May 2022 
Matt Cohrs Secretary 
 
DATE:  November 16, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:30 p.m. 
 
LOCATION: Zoom Meeting 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87014685077?pwd=anlpRlpLSWxUbXJaZloraHpmcis4UT09 
Phone: 1 (346) 248-7799 or 1 (669) 900-6833 

Meeting ID: 870 1468 5077 
Password: 312546 
One tap mobile: 

+13462487799,,87014685077# 
+16699006833,,87014685077# 

 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. Present Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest. 
  

 
B. Confirm quorum, location of meeting and posting of meeting notices.  Approve 

agenda. 
  
 

C. Review and approve the Minutes of the October 5, 2021 Special Meeting 
(enclosure).  
  
 

D. Discuss business to be conducted in 2022 and location (virtual and/or physical) 
of meetings.  Schedule regular meeting dates for 2022 (suggested dates are March 
15, June 14, September 20 and November 15, 2022).  Review and consider adoption 
of Resolution No. 2021-11-01; Resolution Establishing Regular Meeting Dates, 
Time, and Location, and Designating Location for Posting of 24-Hour Notices 
(enclosure). 
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E. Discuss requirements of Section 32-1-809, C.R.S., and direct staff regarding 

compliance for 2022 (District Transparency Notice). 
   

 
II. CONSENT AGENDA – These items are considered to be routine and will be approved 

and/or ratified by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Board member so requests; in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered in the Regular Agenda. 
  

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

A. Members of the public may express their views to the Board on matters that affect 
the District.  Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. 
  
 

IV. FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Review and consider approval of the payment of claims through the period ending 
as follows (enclosures): 

 

Fund 

Period Ending 
Sept. 30, 2021 

Period Ending 
October 31, 2021 

Period Ending 
Special Payment 

Nov. 2, 2021 
General  $ 12,667.48 $ 36,724.00 $ 24,351.89 
Debt Service $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- 
Capital Projects $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- 
Total  $ 12,667.48 $ 36,724.00 $ 24,351.89 

  
 

B. Review and accept the unaudited financial statements through the period ending 
September 30, 2021 and Schedule of Cash Position updated as of November 3, 
2021 (enclosure). 
  

 
C. Consider engagement of Dazzio & Associates, PC for preparation of 2021 Audit, 

in the amount of $4,000 (enclosure). 
  
 

D. Conduct Public Hearing to consider Amendment to 2021 Budget (if necessary) and 
consider adoption of Resolution to Amend the 2021 Budget and Appropriate 
Expenditures. 
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E. Conduct Public Hearing on the proposed 2022 Budget and consider adoption of 
Resolution to Adopt the 2022 Budget and Appropriate Sums of Money and Set Mill 
Levies for General Fund _______, Debt Service Fund _______, and Other Fund(s) 
_______ for a total mill levy of _______ (enclosures – preliminary AV, draft 2022 
Budget, and Resolutions). 
  

 
F. Consider authorizing the District Accountant to prepare and sign the DLG-70 Mill 

Levy Certification form for certification to the Board of County Commissioners 
and other interested parties. 
  

 

G. Consider appointment of District Accountant to prepare the 2023 Budget, and set 
the date of the Budget Hearing as November 15, 2022. 
  

 
H. Discuss and consider approval of Master Service Agreement for Accounting 

Services by and between the District and CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and related 
Statement(s) of Work (enclosure). 
  

 
V. LEGAL MATTERS 
 

A. Discuss May 3, 2022 Regular Director Election regarding new legislative 
requirements and related expenses for same. 

 
1. Consider adoption of Resolution Calling a Regular Election for Directors 

on May 3, 2022, appointing the Designated Election Official (“DEO”), and 
authorizing the DEO to perform all tasks required for the conduct of mail 
ballot election (enclosure).  Self-Nomination forms are due by February 25, 
2022.  Discuss the need for ballot issues and/or questions. 
  

 
VI. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 

A. Review and consider approval of proposal from Consolidated Divisions Inc., Dba 
CDI Environmental Contractor for 2022 Detention Pond Maintenance (enclosure). 
  

 
B. Review and consider approval of proposal from Brightview Landscape Services, 

Inc. to add rock to planter areas (enclosure). 
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VII. OTHER MATTERS 

 
A. Update on status of development. 

  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT THERE ARE NO MORE REGULAR MEETINGS SCHEDULED 

FOR 2021. 

 
Additional Enclosure: 

• Notice of rate increase from Special District Management Services, Inc. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
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  MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
HELD 

OCTOBER 5, 2021 
 
A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors (referred to hereafter as the “Board”) 
of the Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1 (referred to hereafter as the 
“District”) was held on Tuesday, the 5th day of October 2021, at 4:30 p.m.  Due to 
concerns regarding the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) and the benefits to 
the control of the spread of the virus by limiting in-person contact, the District 
Board meeting was held and properly noticed to be held via Zoom.  The meeting 
was open to the public via Zoom. 
___________ 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

 Directors In Attendance Were: 
Laura H. Newman 
Donald D. Cabrera 
Jeffrey D. Jones 
David Smith 
Todd T. Wenskoski 
 
Also In Attendance Were: 
Matt Cohrs; Special District Management Services, Inc. (“SDMS”) 
 
Paula Williams, Esq.; McGeady Becher P.C. 
 

Jason Carroll and Lindsay Ross; CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
___________ 
 

DISCLOSURE OF 
POTENTIAL 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: The Board discussed the 
requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any potential 
conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the Board and to the 
Secretary of State. It was noted that disclosures of potential conflicts of interest 
statements for each of the Directors had been filed with the Secretary of State 
seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting. Attorney Williams requested that 
the Directors consider whether they had any additional conflicts of interest to 
disclose. It was noted for the record that there were no additional disclosures  
made by the Directors present at the meeting and incorporated for the record  
those applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior to this meeting in 
accordance with the statutes. 
___________ 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
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ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS 

 Confirmation of Quorum and Approval of Meeting Location: Mr. Cohrs 
confirmed the presence of a quorum.  The Board entered into a discussion 
regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S., concerning the 
location of the District’s Board meeting. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Jones and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board determined that 
due to concerns regarding the spread of COVID-19 and the benefits to the control 
of the virus by limiting in-person contact, this meeting was conducted via Zoom 
meeting. The Board further noted that notice of the time, date and meeting access 
information was duly posted and that no objections, or any requests that the 
means of hosting the meeting be changed were received from taxpaying electors 
within the District’s boundaries. 
 
Agenda: Mr. Cohrs reviewed with the Board a proposed Agenda for the District's  
Special Meeting.  
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Jones and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Agenda was approved, as 
presented.  
 
Minutes: The Board reviewed the Minutes of the June 15, 2021 Special Meeting. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Jones, seconded by 
Director Smith and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Minutes of the June 15, 
2021 Special Meetings were approved, as presented. 
___________ 
 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 The Board considered the following actions: 
 

• Ratify approval of proposal from Consolidated Divisions, Inc., D/B/A 
CDI Environmental Contractor for Detention Pond Maintenance, in the 
amount of $9,000.00. 
 

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Newman and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved 
and/or ratified approval of the Consent Agenda item. 
___________ 
 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 There were no public comments. 
___________ 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
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FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 

 Claims: The Board considered ratifying the approval of the payment of claims as 
follows: 
 

Fund 
Period Ending 
June 30, 2021 

Period Ending 
July 31, 2021 

Period Ending 
August 31, 2021 

General  $ 30,215.14 $ 24,072.08 $ 19,526.29 
Debt Service $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- 
Capital Projects $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- 
Total  $ 30,215.14 $ 24,072.08 $ 19,526.29 

 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Jones and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified approval 
of the payment of the claims, as presented. 
 
Unaudited Financial Statements: Mr. Carroll reviewed the unaudited financial 
statements through the period ending June 30, 2021 and Schedule of Cash 
Position, updated as of September 9, 2021, with the Board. 
 
Following review, upon motion duly made by Director Newman, seconded by 
Director Cabrera and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board accepted the 
unaudited financial statements through the period ending June 30, 2021 and 
Schedule of Cash Position, updated as of September 9, 2021. 
___________ 
 

LEGAL MATTERS  Resolution 2021-10-01; Resolution Establishing Impact Fee for 
Developments Outside of District:  The Board entered into discussion regarding 
a Resolution Establishing Impact Fee for Developments Outside of District.   
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Jones and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adopted 
Resolution 2021-10-01; Resolution Establishing Impact Fee for Developments 
Outside of District. 
___________ 
 

OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE 

 Change Order No. 1 to Service Agreement for Snow Removal Services by 
and between the District and BrightView Landscape, Inc. (“Change Order 
No. 1”):  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 1. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Cabrera, seconded by 
Director Newman and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved 
Change Order No. 1. 
 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
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Change Order No. 11 to Service Agreement for Landscape Services by and 
between the District and BrightView Landscape, Inc. (“Change Order No. 
11”):  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 11. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Jones, seconded by 
Director Newman and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved 
Change Order No. 11. 
 
Service Agreement by and between the District and Crest Exteriors LLC 
for Creation of a Dog Play Area: The Board entered into discussion regarding 
a Service Agreement by and between the District and Crest Exteriors LLC for 
the Creation of a Dog Play Area. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Jones, seconded by 
Director Smith and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the 
Service Agreement by and between the District and Crest Exteriors LLC for 
Creation of a Dog Play Area, subject to adding additional fencing to enclose the 
entire dog park, at a total cost not to exceed $18,000. 
 

OTHER MATTERS  Status of Development:  Director Cabrera and Mr. Cohrs updated the Board on 
the status of development.  
  
 

ADJOURNMENT  There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon 
motion duly made by Director Newman, seconded by Director Smith and, upon 
vote, unanimously carried, the Special Meeting was adjourned. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
By:    
        Secretary for the Meeting 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021 – 11 - ____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING DATES, TIME, AND LOCATION, AND  
DESIGNATING LOCATION FOR POSTING OF 24-HOUR NOTICES 

A. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., special districts are required to designate 
a schedule for regular meetings, indicating the dates, time and location of said meetings. 

B. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(5), C.R.S., “location” means the physical, telephonic, 
electronic, or virtual place, or a combination of such means where a meeting can be 
attended.  “Meeting” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 24-6-402(1)(b), C.R.S., and 
means any kind of gathering, convened to discuss public business, in person, by telephone, 
electronically, or by other means of communication. 

C. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(I), C.R.S., special districts are required to 
designate annually at the board of directors of the district’s first regular meeting of each calendar 
year, the public place at which notice of the date, time and location of regular and special meetings 
(“Notice of Meeting”) will be physically posted at least 24 hours prior to each meeting 
(“Designated Public Place”).  A special district is deemed to have given full and timely notice of 
a regular or special meeting if it posts its Notice of Meeting at the Designated Public Place at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting. 

D. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(III), C.R.S., special districts are relieved of the 
requirement to post the Notice of Meeting at the Designated Public Place, and are deemed to have 
given full and timely notice of a public meeting if a special district posts the Notice of Meeting 
online on a public website of the special district (“District Website”) at least 24 hours prior to 
each regular and special meeting. 

E. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(III), C.R.S., if a special district is unable to post 
a Notice of Meeting on the District Website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting due to exigent 
or emergency circumstances, then it must physically post the Notice of Meeting at the Designated 
Public Place at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

F. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., all meetings of the board that are held 
solely at physical locations must be held at physical locations that are within the boundaries of the 
district or that are within the boundaries of any county in which the district is located, in whole or 
in part, or in any county so long as the physical location does not exceed twenty (20) miles from 
the district boundaries unless such provision is waived. 

G. The provisions of Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., may be waived if:  (1) the 
proposed change of the physical location of a meeting of the board appears on the agenda of a 
meeting; and (2) a resolution is adopted by the board stating the reason for which meetings of the 
board are to be held in a physical location other than under Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., and 
further stating the date, time and physical location of such meeting. 
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Denargo 
Market Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”), City and County of Denver, Colorado: 

1. That the provisions of Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., be waived pursuant to the 
adoption of this Resolution. 

2. That the Board of Directors (the “District Board”) has determined that conducting 
meetings at a physical location pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., would be inconvenient 
and costly for the directors and consultants of the District in that they live and/or work outside of 
the twenty (20) mile radius requirement.  

3. That regular meetings of the District Board for the year 2022 shall be held on March 
15, June 14, September 20 and November 15, 2022 at 4:30 p.m., at AMLI Denargo Market 
Apartment Complex, Conference Room, 2525 Wewatta Way, Denver, Colorado 80216. 
 

4. That special meetings of the District Board shall be held as often as the needs of 
the District require, upon notice to each director. 

5. That, until circumstances change, and a future resolution of the District Board so 
designates, the physical location and/or method or procedure for attending meetings of the District 
Board virtually (including the conference number or link) shall appear on the agenda(s) of said 
meetings. 

6. That the residents and taxpaying electors of the District shall be given an 
opportunity to object to the meeting(s) physical location(s), and any such objections shall be 
considered by the District Board in setting future meetings. 

7. That the District has established the following District Website, 
https://denargo.colorado.gov, and the Notice of Meeting of the District Board shall be posted on 
the District Website at least 24 hours prior to meetings pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(III), 
C.R.S. and Section 32-1-903(2), C.R.S.  

8. That, if the District is unable to post the Notice of Meeting on the District Website 
at least 24 hours prior to each meeting due to exigent or emergency circumstances, the Notice of 
Meeting shall be posted within the boundaries of the District at least 24 hours prior to each meeting, 
pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(I) and (III), C.R.S., at the following Designated Public Place: 

a. On west side of Denargo Street just south of Wewatta Way on the southern 
boundary of Tract F  

9. Special District Management Services, Inc., or his/her designee, is hereby 
appointed to post the above-referenced notices. 

  

https://denargo.colorado.gov/
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[SIGNATURE PAGE TO RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING 
DATES, TIME, AND LOCATION, AND DESIGNATING LOCATION FOR 24-HOUR 

NOTICES] 

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED on November 16, 2021. 

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

By:  
 President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Secretary 
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Vendor Invoice # Date Due Date Amount Expense Account Account Number

Denargo Broadway III, LLC Damage Deposit 10.19.2021 10/19/2021 11/2/2021 24,351.89$   Other Current Liability 103140

24,351.89$  

Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1
November-21



General Debt Capital Totals
24,351.89

Disbursements  -$                  -$                    
Payroll -$                -$                  -$                    
Total Disbursements from Checking Acct -$                -$                -$                  -$                    

Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1
November-21



DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021



General

ASSETS
Cash - Checking 10,250$

Colotrust 295,346

Prepaid expense 900

Due from District No. 2 4,088

TOTAL ASSETS 310,584$

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 22,883$

Payroll taxes payable 321

Damage Deposits 81,173

Total Liabilities 104,377

FUND BALANCES

Total Fund Balances 206,207

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 310,584$

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted. 
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Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual Variance

REVENUES

Interest income 2,000$ 81$ (1,919)$

Permit fees - 11,820 11,820

Transfer from District No. 2 281,900 279,413 (2,487)

TOTAL REVENUES 283,900 291,314 7,414

EXPENDITURES

Accounting 24,500 25,657 (1,157)

Auditing 4,500 8,500 (4,000)

City of Denver annual fee 6,000 6,000 -

Contingency 54,623 - 54,623

Detention Pond Cleanup 10,000 4,500 5,500

Directors' fees 1,000 2,000 (1,000)

District management 45,000 40,588 4,412

Dues and licenses - 1,140 (1,140)

Insurance and bonds 11,800 10,517 1,283

Landscape & irrigation repairs 35,000 43,948 (8,948)

Landscape & options 95,725 36,245 59,480

Legal services 30,000 19,713 10,287

Locates 3,500 1,563 1,937

Miscellaneous 2,500 2,086 414

Payroll taxes 77 153 (76)

Repairs and maintenance 25,000 27,704 (2,704)

Security 7,500 3,110 4,390

Sight lighting 5,000 721 4,279

Site inspection 24,000 12,025 11,975

Snow removal 25,000 22,135 2,865

Street sweeping 1,000 - 1,000

Streets and sidewalk 27,000 - 27,000

Utilities 15,000 6,707 8,293

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 453,725 275,012 178,713

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (169,825) 16,302 186,127

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 197,976 189,904 (8,072)

NET POSITION - ENDING 28,151$ 206,206$ 178,055$

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

GENERAL FUND

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted. 

2



DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Services Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation, was formed in June 2010, and is governed pursuant to 
provisions of the Colorado Special District Act. The District's service area is located in Denver, Colorado. 

The District was established to provide for acquisition, construction, and installation of water, sanitation, 
drainage, street improvements, parks and recreational facilities, television relay and translation, and 
mosquito control. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the 
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of 
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of 
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the 
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and 
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations 
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by 
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties 
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the 
ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s 
election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax 
liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes 
collected monthly to the District. 

Interest Income 

Interest earned on the District's available funds has been estimated based on an average interest rate of 
approximately 1.50%.  

Developer Advance 

The District is in the development stage. As such, the portion of the capital expenditures is expected to 
be funded by the Developer. Developer advances are recorded as revenue for budget purposes with an 
obligation for future repayment when the District is financially able to reimburse the Developer from bond 
proceeds and other legally available revenue. 

Expenditures 

Administrative and Operating Expenditures 

Administrative and operating expenditures include the estimated services necessary to maintain the 
District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance, banking, and 
meeting expense. 

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted. 
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DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
2021  BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

         Debt and Leases 

The District doesn’t have any debt or leases. 

Reserve Fund 

Emergency Reserve 

The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending, as 
defined under the TABOR Amendment. 

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted. 
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General 
Fund

First Bank - Checking Account
Balance as of 09/30/21 10,250.21$         

Subsequent activities:
10/04/21 Transfer from ColoTrust 11,000.00           
10/05/21 Denver Water (979.46)               
10/06/21 Vouchers payable - bill.com (11,808.98)          
11/03/21 Denver Water (812.42)               

Anticipated October Vouchers Payable (117,896.97)       
Anticipated transfer from ColoTrust 120,000.00         
Anticipated transfer from Denargo No. 2 4,088.15             
Anticipated Balance 13,840.53           

ColoTrust
Balance as of 09/30/21 295,346.02$       
Subsequent activities: 

10/04/21 Transfer to 1st Bank (11,000.00)          
Anticipated transfer to checking (120,000.00)       

Anticipated Balance 164,346.02$       

Total Available for Operations 178,186.55$       

Yield information:
ColoTrust -  0.0182% (09/30/21)

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
Schedule of Cash Position

September 30, 2021
Updated as of November 03, 2021

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted. 
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8200 South Quebec Street, Suite A3259, Centennial, Colorado 80112 
303-905-0809  info@dazziocpa.com 

 Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants    Member Colorado Society of Certified Public Accountants  

 

 

Dazzio & Associates, PC 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
November 4, 2021 
 
To the Board of Directors and Management 
Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1 
c/o Special District Management Services 
141 Union Blvd., Suite 150 
Lakewood, CO  80228 
 

We  are  pleased  to  confirm  our  understanding  of  the  services we  are  to  provide  Denargo Market 
Metropolitan District No. 1 (the District) for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We  will  audit  the  financial  statements  of  the  governmental  activities,  each  major  fund  and  the 
disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the District as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2021.  

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in conformity with GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred 
to  in  the  second  paragraph  when  considered  in  relation  to  the  financial  statements  as  a  whole. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when  it exists.   Misstatements,  including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records and 
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions.  As part of an audit in 
accordance  with  GAAS,  we  exercise  professional  judgment  and  maintain  professional  skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management.   We will also evaluate  the overall presentation of  the 
financial  statements,  including  the  disclosures,  and  determine  whether  the  financial  statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free  of  material  misstatement,  whether  from  (1)  errors,  (2)  fraudulent  financial  reporting, 
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. 
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Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  of  an  audit,  combined with  the  inherent  limitations  of  internal 
control,  and  because  we  will  not  perform  a  detailed  examination  of  all  transactions,  there  is  an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS.  In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct 
and material  effect  on  the  financial  statements.   However, we will  inform  the  appropriate  level of 
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
comes to our attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of 
laws  or  governmental  regulations  that  come  to  our  attention,  unless  clearly  inconsequential.   Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later 
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and 
financial institutions.  We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the 
engagement.  

Audit Procedures—Internal Control 

We will obtain an understanding of  the government and  its environment,  including  internal  control 
relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks and obtain evidence that  is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as  fraud may  involve collusion,  forgery,  intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or  the 
override of  internal control.   An audit  is not designed  to provide assurance on  internal control or  to 
identify deficiencies in internal control.  Accordingly, we will express no such opinion.  However, during 
the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance  internal control 
related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and agreements.  However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an 
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for 
designing,  implementing,  and  maintaining  internal  controls  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; 
and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related 
information  available  to  us  and  for  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  that  information  (including 
information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers).  You are also responsible for providing 
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us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,  identification of all related 
parties and all related‐party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information 
that we may request  for the purpose of the audit; and  (3) unrestricted access to persons within the 
government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our 
audit, we will  require  certain written  representations  from  you  about  the  financial  statements  and 
related matters. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and 
confirming  to  us  in  the  management  representation  letter  that  the  effects  of  any  uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during  the current engagement and pertaining  to  the  latest period 
presented are  immaterial, both  individually and  in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each 
opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) 
management,  (2) employees who have significant roles  in  internal control, and  (3) others where  the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  Your responsibilities include informing 
us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received 
in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.  In addition, you 
are  responsible  for  identifying and ensuring  that  the government complies with applicable  laws and 
regulations.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations 
we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Dazzio & Associates, PC and constitutes 
confidential information.  However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate  individuals will be made available upon  request and  in a  timely manner  to a  regulatory 
agency or  its designee.   We will notify you of any  such  request.    If  requested, access  to  such audit 
documentation  will  be  provided  under  the  supervision  of  Dazzio  &  Associates,  PC  personnel.  
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to a regulatory 
agency or  its designee.   The regulatory agency or  its designee may  intend or decide to distribute the 
copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

Stephen Dazzio  is  the  engagement  partner  and  is  responsible  for  supervising  the  engagement  and 
signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it.  

Our  fee  for  services will  be  at  our  standard  hourly  rates  plus  out‐of‐pocket  costs  (such  as  report 
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our 
gross fee, including expenses, will not exceed $4,000.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the 
degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  Our 
invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more 
overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services 
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of 
termination, even if we have not completed our report.  You will be obligated to compensate us for all 
time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket costs through the date of termination.   The 
above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected 
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circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we 
will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District’s financial statements.   Our 
report will be addressed to Board of Directors of the District.   Circumstances may arise  in which our 
report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit.  Depending on 
the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate 
section, or add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, 
withdraw from this engagement.  If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons 
with you in advance.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or 
have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or withdraw from this engagement.  

We  appreciate  the  opportunity  to  be  of  service  to  the  District  and  believe  this  letter  accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If 
you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy 
and return it to us.  

Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1. 

 

Management signature:      

Title:      

Date:      

 

Board signature:      

Title:      

Date:      

 



CERTIFICATION OF VALUATION BY COUNTY ASSESSOR
Name of Jurisdiction                                                                                                                                         New Entity? 

USE FOR "TABOR LOCAL GROWTH" CALCULATIONS ONLY

USE FOR STATUTORY PROPERTY TAX REVENUE LIMIT CALCULATIONS ("5.5%" LIMIT) ONLY
In accordance with 39-5-121(2)(a) and 39-5-128(1), C.R.S., and no later than August 25, the Assessor certifies the TOTAL 
VALUATION FOR ASSESSMENT for the taxable year 2021:

  1. Previous year's NET TOTAL TAXABLE assessed valuation: 
  2. Current year's GROSS TOTAL TAXABLE assessed valuation:
      This value reflects personal property exemptions IF enacted by the jurisdriction as authorized by Art, X, Sec. 20(8)(b), Colo. Constitution.

  3. LESS TIF District Increment, If any:
  4. Current year's NET TOTAL TAXABLE assessed valuation:
  5. New Construction*:
      New Construction is defined as: Taxable real property structures and the personal property connected with the structure.

  6. Increased production of producing mine*:

  7. Annexations/Inclusions:
  8. Previously exempt Federal property*:

 $30
 $560

 $0
 $560

 $0

 $0

 $0
 $0

 $0

 $0

 $0

 $100

 $0

  9. New primary oil or gas production from any producing oil and gas leasehold or land                         
       (29-1-301(1)(b), C.R.S.): 

10. Taxes collected last year on omitted property as of August 1 (29-1-301(1)(a), C.R.S.):

11. Taxes abated and refunded as of August 1 (29-1-301(1)(a), C.R.S. and (39-10-114(1)(a)(l)(B), 
      C.R.S.):

In accordance with the provisions of Art. X, Sec. 20, Colo. Cons., and 39-5-121(2)(b), C.R.S., the Assessor certifies the 
TOTAL ACTUAL VALUATION for the taxable year 2021:  
  1. Current year's total actual value of ALL REAL PROPERTY:
      This includes the actual value of all taxable real property plus the actual value of religious, private school, and charitable real property.

 ADDITIONS to taxable real property

        *Jurisdiction must submit respective certifications (Form DLG 52 & 52A) to the Division of Local Government in order for the values to be treated as       
         growth in the limit calculation.

  2. Construction of taxable real property improvements:
      Construction is defined as newly constructed taxable real property structures.

DELETIONS from taxable real property:

  3. Annexation/Inclusions:
  4. Increased mining production:
      Includes production from new mines and increases in production of existing producing mines.
  5. Previously exempt property:
  6. Oil or gas production from a new well:
  7. Taxable real property omitted from the previous year's tax warrant:
      If land and/or a structure is picked up as omitted property for multiple years, only the most current year's actual value can         
        be reported as omitted property.

  8. Destruction of taxable real property improvements:

  9. Disconnections/Exclusions: 

10. Previously taxable property: 

NOTE: ALL LEVIES MUST BE CERTIFIED to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS NO LATER THAN DECEMBER 15.

 $0
 $0

 $0
 $0
 $0

 $0

 $0

 $0

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 39-5-128(1), C.R.S., AND NO LATER THAN AUGUST 25, THE ASSESSOR CERTIFIES TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
1.  Total actual value of all taxable property:

DLG-57 (Rev. 6/20)

1. 
2.

3.
4.
5.

6.

7. 
8.

9.

10. 

11.

1. 

2. 

3.
4.

5.

6.
7.

8.

9.

10.

1.

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 Yes No X

       Jurisdiction must apply (Form DLG 52B) to the division of Local Government before the value can be treated as growth in the limit calculation. 

IN     Denver     COUNTY, COLORADO on August 23, 2021

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 39-5-128(1.5), C.R.S., THE ASSESSOR PROVIDES:
 HB21-1312 VALUE OF EXEMPT BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY (ESTIMATED): **
**       The tax revenue lost due to this exempted value will be reimbursed to the tax entity by the County Treasurer in accordance
          with 39-3-119.5(3), C.R.S.



DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

ANNUAL BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022 



10/1/21

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2020 2021 6/30/2021 2021 2022

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 44,408$         197,976$       189,905$       189,905$       88,195           

REVENUES

Interest income 59                  2,000             72                  144                1,000             

Other revenue 35                  -                     -                     -                     -                     

Permit fees 57,602           -                     9,450             21,000           5,000             

Transfer from District No. 2 288,785         281,900         275,325         282,303         324,662         

Total revenues 346,481         283,900         284,847         303,447         330,662         

Total funds available 390,889         481,876         474,752         493,352         418,857         

EXPENDITURES

General and administrative

Accounting 31,252           24,500           19,078           33,000           35,000           

Auditing 4,500             4,500             -                     8,500             9,000             

City of Denver Annual Fee 6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             

Directors' fees 2,500             1,000             1,500             2,500             2,500             

District management 41,845           45,000           30,906           57,000           57,000           

Dues and licenses -                     -                     1,140             1,140             1,300             

Election expense 2,257             -                     -                     -                     2,300             

Insurance and bonds 10,804           11,800           10,517           10,517           11,800           

Legal services 17,995           30,000           17,833           32,000           35,000           

Miscellaneous 2,059             2,500             1,118             2,200             2,500             

Payroll taxes 298                77                  115                200                200                

Contingency -                     54,623           -                     -                     12,400           

Operations and maintenance 

Detention pond cleanup 1,829             10,000           4,500             9,000             10,000

Landscape & irrigation repairs 40,064           35,000           43,567           66,000           35,000           

Landscape & Options -                     95,725           31,089           51,800           55,000           

Locates 1,401             3,500             1,144             2,300             3,500             

Repairs and maintenance 1,029             25,000           26,304           49,000           25,000           

Security 2,940             7,500             2,450             4,900             7,500             

Site inspection 6,525             24,000           12,025           24,000           24,000           

Site lighting 1,242             5,000             528                1,100             5,000             

Snow removal 15,802           25,000           22,135           34,000           25,000           

Street sweeping -                     1,000             -                     -                     1,000             

Streets and sidewalk -                     27,000           -                     -                     27,000           

Utilities 10,642           15,000           3,476             10,000           15,000           

Total expenditures 200,984         453,725         235,425         405,157         408,000         

Total expenditures and transfers out 

requiring appropriation 200,984         453,725         235,425         405,157         408,000         

ENDING FUND BALANCE 189,905$       28,151$         239,327$       88,195$         10,857$         

EMERGENCY RESERVE 10,400$         8,600$           8,600$           9,200$           10,000$         

TOTAL RESERVE 10,400$         8,600$           8,600$           9,200$           10,000$         

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
GENERAL FUND 

2022 BUDGET
 WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED

 No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2020 2021 6/30/2021 2021 2022

ASSESSED VALUATION

Vacant land 30$  30$  30$  30$  30$  

Personal property - - - - 530 

Certified Assessed Value 30$  30$  30$  30$  560$              

MILL LEVY

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES

Budgeted property taxes -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES

-$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2022 BUDGET
 WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

 No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions. 
2
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DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
2022 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

3 

Services Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation, was formed in June 2010, and is governed pursuant to 
provisions of the Colorado Special District Act. The District's service area is located in Denver, Colorado. 

The District was established to provide for acquisition, construction, and installation of water, sanitation, 
drainage, street improvements, parks and recreational facilities, television relay and translation, and 
mosquito control. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the 
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of 
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of 
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the 
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and 
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations 
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by 
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties 
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the 
ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s 
election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax 
liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes 
collected monthly to the District. 

Interest Income 

Interest earned on the District's available funds has been estimated based on historical information. 

Developer Advance 

The District is in the development stage. As such, the portion of the capital expenditures is expected to 
be funded by the Developer. Developer advances are recorded as revenue for budget purposes with an 
obligation for future repayment when the District is financially able to reimburse the Developer from bond 
proceeds and other legally available revenue. 

Expenditures 

Administrative and Operating Expenditures 

Administrative and operating expenditures include the estimated services necessary to maintain the 
District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance, banking, and 
meeting expense. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
2022  BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 
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  Debt and Leases 

The District doesn’t have any debt or leases. 

Reserve Fund 

Emergency Reserve 

The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending, as 
defined under the TABOR Amendment. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying budget. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021 – 11 - ___ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
TO ADOPT THE 2022 BUDGET AND APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1 

(“District”) has appointed the District Accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 2022 budget 
to the Board at the proper time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Accountant has submitted a proposed budget to this Board on or 
before October 15, 2021, for its consideration; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the law, 
said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing 
was held on November 16, 2021, and interested electors were given the opportunity to file or 
register any objections to said proposed budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, the budget has been prepared to comply with all terms, limitations and 
exemptions, including, but not limited to, reserve transfers and expenditure exemptions, under 
Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution ("TABOR") and other laws or obligations 
which are applicable to or binding upon the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases 
were added to the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District has made provisions therein for revenues 
in an amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said budget; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the revenues 
provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, as more fully set forth in the 
budget, including any interfund transfers listed therein, so as not to impair the operations of the 
District. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Denargo 

Market Metropolitan District No. 1: 
 

1. That the budget as submitted, amended, and summarized by fund, hereby is 
approved and adopted as the budget of the Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1 for the 
2022 fiscal year. 

 
2. That the budget, as hereby approved and adopted, shall be certified by the Secretary 

of the District to all appropriate agencies and is made a part of the public records of the District. 
 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
3. That the sums set forth as the total expenditures of each fund in the budget attached hereto 
as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference are hereby appropriated from the revenues 
of each fund, within each fund, for the purposes stated. 
 

ADOPTED this 16th day of November, 2021. 
 
 
   
 Secretary 
 
(SEAL) 
 



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Budget) 
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 I, Matt Cohrs, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of the Denargo Market 
Metropolitan District No. 1, and that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the budget for the 
budget year 2022, duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Denargo Market 
Metropolitan District No. 1 held on November 16, 2021. 
 
 

By:    
 Secretary
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 11 - ___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

TO SET MILL LEVIES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Denargo Market Metropolitan District No. 1 
(“District”) has adopted the 2022 annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget 
Law on November 16, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the adopted budget is attached to the Resolution of the Board of Directors to 
Adopt the 2022 Budget and Appropriate Sums of Money, and such budget is incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for general fund 
expenses from property tax revenue is identified in the budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for debt service fund 

expenses from property tax revenue is identified in the budget; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Denargo Market 
Metropolitan District No. 1: 
 

1. That for the purposes of meeting all general fund expenses of the District during 
the 2022 budget year, the District determined to levy mills upon each dollar of the total valuation 
for assessment of all taxable property within the District, as set forth in the budget, to raise the 
required revenue. 
 

2. That for the purposes of meeting all debt service fund expenses of the District 
during the 2022 budget year, the District determined to levy mills upon each dollar of the total 
valuation for assessment of all taxable property within the District, as set forth in the budget, to 
raise the required revenue. 

 
3. That the District Accountant of the District is hereby authorized and directed to 

immediately certify to the County Commissioners of City and County of Denver, Colorado, the 
mill levies for the District as set forth in the District’s Certification of Tax Levies (attached hereto 
as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference), recalculated as needed upon receipt of the 
final certification of valuation from the County Assessor in order to comply with any applicable 
revenue and other budgetary limits. 

 
ADOPTED this 16th day of November, 2021. 
 
 

   
 Secretary 
 
(SEAL) 



EXHIBIT A 

(Certification of Tax Levies) 
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
phone 303-779-5710  fax 303-779-0348 
CLAconnect.com 

 
 

September 14, 2021 
 
Board of Directors 
Denargo Market Metro District No. 1 
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
  

Dear Board of Directors: 

This master service agreement (“MSA”) documents the terms, objectives, and the nature and limitations of 
the services CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) will provide for Denargo Market Metro 
District No. 1 (“you,” “your,” or “the district”). The terms of this MSA will apply to the initial and each 
subsequent statement of work (“SOW”), unless the MSA is changed in a communication that you and CLA 
both sign or is terminated as permitted herein. 
 
Scope of professional services 
CLA will provide services as described in one or more SOW that will reference this MSA. The SOW will describe 
the scope of professional services; the nature, limitations, and responsibilities related to the specific services 
CLA will provide; and the fees for such services.  

If modifications or changes are required during CLA’s performance of requested services, or if you request 
that we perform any additional services, we will provide you with a separate SOW for your signature. Such 
SOW will advise you of the additional fee and time required for such services to facilitate a clear understanding 
of the services. 

Our services cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or noncompliance with laws and regulations. 
Except as described in the scope of professional services section of this MSA or any applicable SOW, we have 
no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of any services. 

Management responsibilities 
Management and, when appropriate, the board of directors of the district acknowledge and understand that 
our role is to provide the services identified in an SOW and that management and the board of directors of 
the district have certain responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking to perform the identified 
services. The district may engage CLA to perform management functions to help the board of directors of the 
district to meet your responsibilities, but the board of directors of the district acknowledges its management 
responsibilities. References to management in this MSA and in an SOW are applicable to the board of directors 
of the district.  
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Responsibilities and limitations related to nonattest services  
For all nonattest services we may provide to you, your management agrees to assume all management 
responsibilities; oversee the services; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; ensure that your data 
and records are complete; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. 

Fees and terms 
See the applicable SOW for the fees for the services.  

Work may be suspended if your account becomes 90 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until 
your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagements will be 
deemed to have been completed even if we have not completed the services. You will be obligated to 
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date 
of termination. 

Payments may be made utilizing checks, Bill.com, your online banking platform, CLA’s electronic payment 
platform, or any other client initiated payment method approved by CLA. CLA’s electronic online bill pay 
platform claconnect.com/billpay accepts credit card and Automated Clearing House (ACH) payments. 
Instructions for making direct bank to bank wire transfers or ACH payments will be provided upon request. 

Other fees 
You also agree to compensate us for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we 
may incur in responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, 
regulatory, or other proceedings that we are asked to respond to on your behalf. 

Finance charges and collection expenses 
You agree that if any statement is not paid within 30 days from its billing date, the unpaid balance shall accrue 
interest at the monthly rate of one and one-quarter percent (1.25%), which is an annual percentage rate of 
15%. In the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due us, reasonable attorney 
fees and expenses shall be recoverable. 

Mediation  
Any disagreement, controversy, or claim (“Dispute”) that may arise out of any aspect of our services or 
relationship with you shall be submitted to non-binding mediation by written notice (“Mediation Notice”) to 
the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences voluntarily with the aid of an 
impartial mediator.  

The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties (i.e., you and 
CLA). The parties agree to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the 
mediator, to reach an amicable resolution of the Dispute.  

Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared 
equally by the parties.  

Any Dispute will be governed by the laws of the state of Colorado, without giving effect to choice of law 
principles. 
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Limitation of remedies 
These limitation of remedies provisions are not applicable for any audit, examination, or agreed-upon 
procedures services provided to you.  

Our role is strictly limited to the services described in an SOW, and we offer no assurance as to the results or 
ultimate outcomes of any services or of any decisions that you may make based on our communications with 
you. You agree that it is appropriate to limit the liability of CLA, its partners, principals, directors, officers, 
employees, and agents (each a “CLA party”) and that this limitation of remedies provision is governed by the 
laws of the state of Colorado, without giving effect to choice of law principles. 

You further agree that you will not hold CLA or any other CLA party liable for any claim, cost, or damage, 
whether based on warranty, tort, contract, or other law, arising from or related to this MSA, the services 
provided under an SOW, the work product, or for any plans, actions, or results of an SOW, except to the extent 
authorized by this MSA. In no event shall any CLA party be liable to you for any indirect, special, incidental, 
consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages, or for loss of profits or loss of goodwill, costs, or attorney 
fees. 

The exclusive remedy available to you shall be the right to pursue claims for actual damages that are directly 
caused by acts or omissions that are breaches by a CLA party of our duties owed under this MSA and the 
specific SOW thereunder, but any recovery on any such claims shall not exceed the fees actually paid by you 
to CLA pursuant to the SOW that gives rise to the claim.  

Time limitation  
The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence that 
fully and fairly establishes the facts underlying any dispute that may arise between you and any CLA party. 
The parties (you and CLA) agree that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise 
apply to a dispute, including one arising out of this MSA or the services performed under an SOW, for breach 
of contract or fiduciary duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any action 
or legal proceeding by you against any CLA party must be commenced as provided below, or you shall be 
forever barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or equitable relief or recovery. An action to 
recover on a dispute shall be commenced within the shorter of these periods (“Limitation Period”): 

Consulting services  
• For each service pursuant to an SOW, separately within twenty-four (24) months after the date we 

deliver the services or work product pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless 
of whether any CLA party provides other services for you under this MSA or other SOW.  

• Within twenty-four (24) months from the date of our last billing for services performed pursuant to 
the SOW on which the dispute is based.  

• Within twenty-four (24) months after the termination by either party of either this MSA or the 
district’s ongoing relationship with CLA.  

Tax services  
• For tax return preparation, separately within thirty-six (36) months after the date when we deliver 

any final tax return(s) pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any 
CLA party provides other services for you under this MSA or other SOW relating to said return(s).   
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• For tax consulting engagements, separately within thirty-six (36) months from the date of our last 
billing for services pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based.  

• For all tax return and tax consulting engagements, within twelve (12) months from the date when you 
terminate this MSA or the district’s ongoing relationship with CLA.  

Examination, compilation, and preparation services related to prospective financial information  
• For examination, compilation, and preparation services related to prospective financial information 

(i.e., forecasts and projections), separately within twelve (12) months after the dates when we deliver 
the work product pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any CLA 
party provides other services for you relating to the work product.  

Audit, review, examination, agreed-upon procedures, compilation, and preparation services other than 
those related to prospective financial information  

• For audit, review, examination, agreed-upon procedures, compilation, and preparation services, 
separately within twenty-four (24) months after the dates when we deliver the work product pursuant 
to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any CLA party provides other services 
for you relating to the work product.  

The applicable Limitation Period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, 
or have not become aware of the existence or possible existence of a dispute. 

CLA shall be authorized to the following cash access services: 

• Using any or a combination of the following methods and approval processes, we will pay your vendors 
and service providers based upon invoices that you have reviewed and approved: 

o Paper checks – we will prepare the checks for your approval and wet ink signature. 

o Payments using Bill.com – we will only release payments after you have electronically approved 
and authorized such payments. 

o ACH/Wire – we will use this method as needed/as requested, with your approval.  

We understand that you will designate one or more members of the Board to approve disbursements using 
the above methods.  

• If applicable, access the entity credit card for purposes of purchasing products and services on your behalf 
up to a certain limit that will be discussed with you and documented separately. 

• Obtain administrator access to your bank accounts for purposes of performing the duties documented in 
our engagement letter identified above. 

• Take deposits to the bank that include cash. 

• If applicable, have access to cash-in-kind assets, such as coupons. 

• If applicable, initiate direct deposits or sign checks as part of the payroll processing function. 
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Management responsibilities relevant to CLA’s access to your cash 
All members of your Board of Directors are responsible for the processes below; however, we understand 
that you will designate one or more board members to review and give approvals for disbursements. All 
approvals must be documented in writing, either electronically or manually, then formally ratified in board 
meetings and documented in the meeting minutes. 

• Approve all invoices and check payments. 

• Approve all new vendors and customers added to the accounting system. 

• Approve non-recurring wires to external parties. 

• Pre-approve for recurring wires, then Board will ratify approval.  

• Approve all new employees and all employee status changes prior to those employees or changes 
being added to the payroll system. 

• Approve all credit card statements prior to those expenses being processed in the accounting system 
and subsequently paid. 

• Approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all customer and vendor credit memos and 
accounts receivable amounts written off. 

• Review and approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all bank statements and affiliated 
monthly reconciliations. 

Other provisions 
Except as permitted by the “Consent” section of this agreement, CLA will not disclose any confidential, 
proprietary, or privileged information of the district or you to any person or party, unless the district or you 
authorizes us to do so, it is published or released by the district, it becomes publicly known or available other 
than through disclosure by us, or disclosure is required by law. This confidentiality provision does not prohibit 
us from disclosing your information to one or more of our affiliated companies in order to provide services 
that you have requested from us or from any such affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be 
subject to the same restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as apply to us.  

Pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain workpapers available 
to a regulator for its regulatory oversight purposes. We will notify you of any such request, if permitted by 
law. Access to the requested workpapers will be provided to the regulator under the supervision of CLA 
personnel and at a location designated by our firm. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of 
selected workpapers to such regulator. The regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or 
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

You acknowledge and agree that this agreement and the pricing structure and billing rates of CLA are sensitive 
information which you shall not furnish or otherwise disclose to any third party without the prior written 
consent of CLA or as required by law.  

We will be responsible for our own property and casualty, general liability, and workers compensation 
insurance, taxes, professional training, and other personnel costs related to the operation of our business.  
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When performing the services identified in applicable SOWs, we will utilize the resources available at the 
district, when applicable, to the extent practical to continue development of your personnel. During a portion 
of our work, we may require the use of your computers. We will try to give you advance notice and coordinate 
our use so it does not interfere with your employees.  

The relationship of CLA with the district shall be solely that of an independent contractor and nothing in this 
agreement shall be construed to create or imply any relationship of employment, agency, partnership, or any 
relationship other than an independent contractor.  

If applicable, accounting standards and procedures will be suggested that are consistent with those normally 
utilized in a district of your size and nature. Internal controls may be recommended relating to the 
safeguarding of the district’s assets. If fraud is initiated by your employees or other service providers, your 
insurance is responsible for covering any losses.  

The district agrees that CLA will not be assuming any fiduciary responsibility on your behalf during the course 
of this agreement, except as may be assumed in a SOW.  

CLA may, at times, utilize external web applications to receive and process information from our clients; 
however, it is not appropriate for you to upload protected health information using such applications. All 
protected health information contained in a document or file that you plan to transmit to us via a web 
application must be redacted by you to the maximum extent possible prior to uploading the document or file. 
In the event that you are unable to remove or obscure all protected health information, please contact us to 
discuss other potential options for transmitting the document or file. 

Consent  
Consent to use financial information 
Annually, we assemble a variety of benchmarking analyses using data obtained through our client 
engagements. Some of this benchmarking information is published and released publicly. However, the 
information that we obtain is confidential, as required by the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct. Your 
acceptance of this MSA will serve as your consent to use of Denargo Market Metro District No. 1 information 
in these cost comparison, performance indicator, and/or benchmarking reports. 
 
Subcontractors  
CLA may, at times, use subcontractors to perform services under this agreement, and they may have access 
to your information and records. Any such subcontractors will be subject to the same restrictions on the use 
of such information and records as apply to CLA under this agreement. 

Technology  
CLA may, at times, use third-party software applications to perform services under this agreement. You 
authorize CLA to sign on your behalf any vendor agreements applicable to such software applications. CLA 
can provide a copy of the application agreement at your request. You acknowledge the software vendor may 
have access to your data. 

Termination of MSA 
Either party may terminate this MSA at any time by giving 30 days written notice to the other party. In that 
event, the provisions of this MSA shall continue to apply to all services rendered prior to termination.  
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Agreement 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this MSA accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our relationship. This MSA, along with the applicable SOW(s), constitute the entire 
agreement regarding services to be performed and supersedes all prior agreements (whether oral or written), 
understandings, negotiations, and discussions between you and CLA. If you have any questions, please let us 
know. If you agree with the terms of our relationship as described in this MSA, please sign, date, and return. 

Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
 

 
Jason Carroll, CPA 
Principal 
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com 
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Response: 
This agreement correctly sets forth the understanding of Denargo Market Metro District No. 1. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Signature  
 
 
____________________________________________  
Title 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Date 
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
phone 303-779-5710  fax 303-779-0348 
CLAconnect.com 

 

Special Districts Preparation SOW 

This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by 
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Denargo Market Metro District No. 1  
(“you” and “your”) dated September 14, 2021. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish 
us to perform in connection with that agreement. 
 
Scope of professional services 
Jason Carroll is responsible for the performance of the preparation engagement and other services identified 
in this agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the 
preparation engagement.  
 

Ongoing normal accounting services:   

Outsourced accounting activities  

For each fund of the district, CLA will generally prepare and maintain the following accounting 
records: 

o Cash receipts journal 

o Cash disbursements journal 

o General ledger 

o Accounts receivable journals and ledgers 

o Deposits with banks and financial institutions 

o Schedule of disbursements 

o Bank account reconciliations 

o Investment records 

o Detailed development fee records 

Process accounts payable including the preparation and issuance of checks for approval by a 
designated individual  

Prepare billings, record billings, enter cash receipts, and track revenues 

Reconcile certain accounts regularly and prepare journal entries 

Prepare depreciation schedules



 

 

Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements and supplementary information, but not 
perform a compilation with respect to those financial statements. Additional information is provided 
below. 

Prepare a schedule of cash position to manage the district’s cash deposits, funding for disbursements, and 
investment programs in accordance with policies established by the district’s board of directors. 

Prepare the annual budget and assist with the filing of the annual budget – additional information is 
provided below. 

Assist the district’s board of directors in monitoring actual expenditures against appropriation/budget. 

If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements (additional information is provided 
below) and related audit schedules for use by the district’s auditors. 

If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit, perform a compilation 
engagement with respect to the Application for Exemption from Audit, and assist with the filing of the 
Application for Exemption from Audit – additional information is provided below. 

Monitor compliance with bond indentures and trust agreements, including preparation of continuing 
disclosure reports to the secondary market as required. 

Review claims for reimbursement from related parties prior to the board of directors’ review and 
approval. 

Read supporting documentation related to the district’s acquisition of infrastructure or other capital 
assets completed by related parties for overall reasonableness and completeness. Procedures in 
excess of providing overall reasonableness and completeness will be subject to a separate SOW. These 
procedures may not satisfy district policies, procedures, and agreements’ requirements. Note: our 
procedures should not be relied upon as the final authorization for this transaction.  

Attend board meetings as requested.  

Be available during the year to consult with you on any accounting matters related to the district. 

Review and approve monthly reconciliations and journal entries prepared by staff 

Reconcile complex accounts monthly and prepare journal entries 

Analyze financial statements and present to management and the board of directors. 

Develop and track key business metrics as requested and review periodically with the board of directors. 

Document accounting processes and procedures 

Continue process and procedure improvement implementation 

Report and manage cash flows 

Assist with bank communications. 

Perform other nonattest services. 
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Compilation services 
If an audit is not required, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by 
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the Application 
for Exemption from Audit. 
 
Preparation services – financial statements 
We will prepare the monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information if applicable of the district, which comprise the balance sheet – governmental funds 
and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance – general fund. The financial 
statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; the government-wide financial 
statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds; 
statement of cash flows for business type activities, if applicable; and required supplementary information. 
 
Preparation services - annual 
If an audit is required, we will prepare the year-end financial statements of the government wide governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information if applicable, and Management Discussion and Analysis, if applicable, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the district, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. The year-end financial statements, including the related notes to the financial statements, will be 
prepared for use by the district’s auditors. 
 
Preparation services – prospective financial information (i.e., unexpired budget information)  

You have requested that we prepare the financial forecast, which comprises the forecasted financial statements 
identified below. 

A financial forecast presents, to the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the entity’s expected financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flows for the forecast period. It is based on management’s assumptions 
reflecting conditions it expects to exist and the course of action it expects to take during the forecast period.  

The financial forecast will omit substantially all of the disclosures required by the guidelines for presentation of a 
financial forecast established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA presentation 
guidelines) other than those related to the significant assumptions.  

The supplementary information accompanying the financial forecast will be prepared and presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial forecast.  

References to financial statements in the remainder of this SOW are to be taken as a reference to also include the 
prospective financial information, where applicable. 

Engagement objectives and our responsibilities 
The objectives of our engagement are to: 

a. Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), except for the departures from U.S. 
GAAP identified above, based on information provided by you and information generated through our 
outsourced accounting services. 
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b. As requested, apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of 
your monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide 
any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements 
in order for them to be in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the departures from U.S. GAAP 
identified above. 

c. Prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised 
Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 based on information provided by you.  

d. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the annual 
budget without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material 
modifications that should be made to the annual budget in order for the annual budget to be in 
accordance with requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105.   

e. If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) based on information 
provided by you. 

f. If applicable, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by the 
Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement on the application. 

We will conduct our preparation and compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and comply with the AICPA's Code of Professional 
Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care. 

Engagement procedures and limitations  
We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us for 
the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on the financial statements, 
the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), the year-end financial 
statements (if an audit is required), and the supplementary information. 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements in the monthly/quarterly/as 
requested financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year-end 
financial statements, including misstatements caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing 
within the district or noncompliance with laws and regulations. We have no responsibility to identify and 
communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of this engagement. You agree that we shall not be 
responsible for any misstatements in the district’s financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for 
Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial statements that we may not identify as a result of 
misrepresentations made to us by you. 

Our report 

The compilation report on the Application for Exemption from Audit will state that management is responsible for 
the accompanying application included in the prescribed form, that we performed a compilation of the 
application, that we did not audit or review the application, and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on it. The report will also state that the Application for Exemption 
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from Audit is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is 
not intended to be a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. The report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of 
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
this specified party and may not be suitable for another purpose. 
 
There may be circumstances in which the report may differ from its expected form and content. If, for any reason, 
we are unable to complete the compilation, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), 
we will not issue reports on budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit as a result of this engagement. 

No assurance statements 
The monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements prepared for the district will not be accompanied by a 
report. However, management agrees that each page of the financial statements will include a statement clearly 
indicating that no assurance is provided on them. 

As part of our preparation of financial statements each page of the financial statements and supplementary 
information will include the following statement: “No assurance is provided on these financial statements. 
Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted if applicable, For best 
business type activities the Statement of Cash Flows has been omitted”. 

If an audit is required, the year-end financial statements prepared for use by the district’s auditors will not be 
accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the year-end financial statements will 
include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them. 

Management responsibilities 

The financial statement engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges 
and understands that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and assist 
management in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the 
departures from U.S. GAAP identified above.  

The annual budget engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and 
understands that our role is to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by 
Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105 and assist management in the presentation of the annual budget in 
accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105. 

The Application for Exemption from Audit engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that 
management acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit 
in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and assist 
management in the presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the 
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.  

We are required by professional standards to identify management’s responsibilities in this agreement. 
Professional standards define management as the persons with executive responsibility for the conduct of the 
district’s operations and may include some or all of those charged with governance. Those standards require that 
you acknowledge and understand that management has the following overall responsibilities that are 
fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs: 
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a. The selection of the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial 
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit. 

b. The preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except 
as identified as above, the preparation and fair presentation of the annual budget in accordance with 
the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in accordance with the 
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.  

c. The presentation of the supplementary information. 

d. The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit 
(if applicable) that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

e. The prevention and detection of fraud. 

f. To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities. 

g. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, 
including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial statements. 

h. To provide us with the following: 

i. Access to all information relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, and the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) such as 
records, documentation, and other matters. 

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the engagement. 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity with whom we determine it necessary to 
communicate. 

We understand that you are engaging us to make recommendations and perform services to help you meet your 
responsibilities relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, the annual budget, 
and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable). 

For all accounting services we may provide to you, including the preparation of your financial statements, the 
annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable), management agrees to assume all 
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual (i.e., the Board Treasurer); 
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. 

Fees, time estimates, and terms  
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills required. 
We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and client support 
fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as 
work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended 
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if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we 
elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed even if 
we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us 
for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. 

The hour rates currently in effect for our services are as follows: 

  Principal   $300 - $425 
Chief Financial Officer  $200 - $385 
Controller   $180 - $250 
Senior    $140 - $180 
Staff    $  80 - $150 
Administrative support  $  80 - $120 

 
Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not included 
in the fees quoted above. We will also add a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all 
professional fees billed. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and their 
assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on the dates required or 
are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances require significant 
additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a substantial increase in the fee 
estimates. 

Use of financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit 
The financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) are for 
management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and publish the financial statements, the annual budget, and the 
Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and our report thereon, they must be reproduced in their 
entirety. Inclusion of the financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit 
(if applicable) in a document, such as an annual report or an offering document, should be done only with our 
prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the opportunity to review such documents 
before issuance. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for 
Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that have been subjected to a compilation engagement, including financial 
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, 
therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of 
other information in the electronic site with the original document. 

We may issue preliminary draft financial statements to you for your review. Any preliminary draft financial 
statements should not be relied on or distributed. 

Municipal advisors 
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal 
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under 
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is not 
acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act with 
respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You should 
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discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and external advisors 
that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material. 

Additional provisions required by CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)  
Unlawful employees, contractors, and subcontractors 
We shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this 
contact. We shall not knowingly contract with a subcontractor that (a) knowingly employs or contracts with a 
worker without authorization to perform work under this contract or (b) fails to certify to us that the subcontractor 
will not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this contact. 
[CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)] 
 
Verification regarding workers without authorization 
We have verified or attempted to verify through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department Program 
[as defined in CRS 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7) of the state of Colorado that we do not employ and contract workers 
without authorization. 
 
Limitation regarding E-Verify Program and the Department Program 
We shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment 
screening of job applicants while performing this contract. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(II)] 
 
Duty to terminate a subcontractor and exceptions 
If we obtain actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract knowingly employs or 
contracts with a worker without authorization, we shall, unless the subcontractor provides information to 
establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without authorization. 
 

(1) Notify the subcontractor and the district within three days that we have actual knowledge that the 
subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without authorization; and 

 
(2) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three days of receiving notice that we have 

actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without 
authorization, the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the worker without 
authorization. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(A) and (B)] 

 
Duty to comply with state investigation 
We shall comply with any reasonable request of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in the 
course of an investigation pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(IV)] 

Agreement 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms and 
provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign below and 
return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and 
agreement with, this SOW. 
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Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
 
 
 
Jason Carroll, CPA 
Principal 
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com 
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APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Signature  
 
 
____________________________________________  
Title 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Date 
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
phone 303-779-5710  fax 303-779-0348 
CLAconnect.com 

 

 Payroll Services SOW 

Date: September 14, 2021 

 

This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by and 
between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Denargo Market Metro District No. 1 (“you” 
and “your”) dated September 14, 2021. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to 
perform in connection with that agreement. 
 

Scope of payroll preparation services 

We will provide the following payroll preparation services from information you provide: 

• For each pay period: 

–   Perform payroll calculations 

  –   Prepare payroll checks or pay-stubs in the case of direct deposit of employee net pay 

–   Initiate electronic transfer of funds for employee net pay and payroll tax deposit liabilities 

–   Processing retirement plan contribution payments 

–   Preparation of retirement plan and other census information 

• Prepare the following government forms annually for each calendar year-end (may be filed electronically): 

–   All copies of required forms W-2 and W-3 

–   Form 940 – Employers Annual Federal Unemployment Tax Return, if applicable 

–   Form 943 – Employers Annual Tax Return for Agricultural Employees 

–   All necessary state forms, if applicable 

• If applicable, prepare the following government reporting forms for each calendar quarter-end (may be 
filed electronically): 

–   Form 941 – Employers Quarterly Tax Return 

–   State Employers Quarterly Withholding Return 

–   State Employers Quarterly Unemployment Tax Return (SUTA) 

–   Initiate electronic funds transfer for quarterly Federal Unemployment Tax (FUTA) liability 
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• Cash access services related to payroll services 

–   Obtain one or more signature stamps bearing the name(s) and facsimile signature(s) of any of your 
officer(s) who are responsible for signing checks and bank drafts on your behalf. 

–   Obtain access to electronic signatures or signatures embedded into cloud-based software for the 
purpose of drafting payments on your behalf. 

–   Prepare checks to be drawn upon your bank account(s) and to use the above noted methods to thereby 
finally approve such checks for payment by the corresponding bank(s). 

–   Initiate the direct deposit of employee net pay from funds drawn upon your bank account(s). 

• The following services would impair independence 

–   Accept responsibility to authorize payment of client funds, electronically or otherwise, except as 
specifically provided for with respect to electronic payroll tax payments. 

–   Accept responsibility to sign or cosign client checks, even if only in emergency situations. 

–   Maintain a client’s bank account or otherwise have custody of a client’s funds or make credit for banking 
decisions for the client. 

Our responsibility to you and limitations of the payroll services 

We will prepare the entity’s federal and state (if applicable) payroll forms and tax returns in accordance with the 
applicable payroll tax laws. We will use our judgment in resolving questions where the law is unclear, and where 
there is reasonable authority, we will resolve questions in your favor whenever possible. 

We will not audit or otherwise verify the accuracy or completeness of the information we receive from you for 
the preparation of the payroll and related returns, and our engagement cannot be relied upon to uncover errors 
or irregularities in the underlying information. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of 
any material errors and of any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the performance of 
our payroll preparation services that fraud may have occurred. In addition, we will inform you of any evidence or 
information that comes to our attention during the performance of our payroll preparation services regarding 
illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they are clearly inconsequential. We have no responsibility to identify 
and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of this engagement. You agree that we shall not be 
responsible for any misstatements in the entity’s payroll that we may not identify as a result of misrepresentations 
made to us by you. 

Our payroll preparation services will include electronically transmitting information to taxing authorities and your 
financial institution to facilitate the electronic transfer of funds. Authorizations for us to provide these services 
will be made in separate communications. 

Our payroll preparation services will include transmitting federal Form W-2, federal Form 1099, and payroll data 
forms to federal and state taxing authorities on your behalf. Authorizations for us to provide these services will 
be made in separate communications. 

Your responsibilities 

It is your responsibility to provide us with all of the information needed to prepare complete and accurate payrolls 
and returns. We will have no obligations with regard to a particular payroll or withholding taxes and filing returns 
in a particular state or local tax jurisdiction until you have provided such information to us. All necessary 
information should be provided to us within two days of the close of each payroll period or no later than two days 
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prior to your payroll check date. A list of information we will require and the dates required will be provided in a 
separate communication. 

For all nonattest services we may provide to you, including these payroll services, management agrees to assume 
all management responsibilities; oversee the services; by designating an individual, preferably within senior 
management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to understand and oversee the services; 
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the 
services.  

Specifically, your responsibilities include: 

• Accuracy of information used in the preparation of the payrolls. 

• Careful review of paychecks or pay-stubs, and payroll journals for each periodic payroll. 

• Accuracy of information used in the preparation and filing of all government forms. 

• Review and pre-approval of each electronic funds transfer initiated on your behalf for employee net pay 
amounts, payroll tax and withholding liabilities, and related benefit amounts. 

You are responsible to carefully review the paper returns that we prepare on your behalf before signing and 
submitting them to tax authorities. You are responsible to review the paper copies of payroll forms and tax returns 
that were filed electronically on your behalf. We will advise you with regard to tax positions taken in the 
preparation of the payroll forms and tax returns, but the responsibility for the payroll forms and tax returns 
remains with you. 

You are also responsible for the payment of payroll tax and withholding liabilities. Therefore, the Internal Revenue 
Service recommends that you enroll in the U.S. Department of the Treasury Electronic Federal Tax Payment 
System (EFTPS) to monitor your account and ensure that timely tax payments are being made for you. You may 
enroll in the EFTPS online at www.eftps.gov, or call 800-555-4477 for an enrollment form. Individual states have 
similar programs that allow you to monitor your account. A list of links by state is provided online at 
http://www.americanpayroll.org/weblink/statelocal-wider/. 

 
Your responsibilities relevant to CLA’s access to your cash 

Someone with management authority is responsible for the processes below. All approvals listed must be 
documented in writing, either electronically or manually: 
 

• Approve all new employees and all employee status changes prior to those employees or changes 

• being added to the payroll system. 

• Approve all payroll runs prior to cash being committed. 

Fees 

Our professional fees will be billed based on the degree of responsibility and contribution of the professionals 
working on the engagement. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a 
technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Other than annual 
adjustments reflecting inflation, our professional fees will not fluctuate unless there is a significant change in the 
number of employees, taxing jurisdictions, or in the services you wish for us to provide. If such changes should 

http://www.americanpayroll.org/weblink/statelocal-wider/
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occur, we will discuss any fee adjustments with you prior to making any changes to your billing. Lastly, any 
additional forms that you would like us to complete will be charged at an hourly fee. 

We do not anticipate encountering the need to perform additional services beyond those described in this letter. 
Below are examples of services considered to be outside the scope of our engagement. We will bill you for 
additional services you would like us to provide at an hourly fee at periodic dates after the additional service has 
been performed. 

• Reprocessing for corrected information provided to us subsequent to original payroll  

• Preparation of non-standard reports 

• Calculation of fringe benefit additions 

• Processing retirement plan contribution payments 

• Preparation of retirement plan and other census information 

• Responding to workers compensation insurance audits 

• Responding to employment verification requests 

• Preparation of additional state tax registrations 

• Preparation of amended payroll tax returns 

• Responding to tax notices 

 
Tax examinations 

All government forms and returns are subject to potential examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities. In 
the event of an examination, we will be available, at your request, to assist or represent you. Services in 
connection with tax examinations are not included in our fee for preparation of your payroll returns. Our fee for 
such services will be billed to you separately, along with any direct costs. 

Record retention 

You are responsible for retaining all documents, records, payroll journals, canceled checks, receipts, or other 
evidence in support of information and amounts reported in your payroll records and on your quarterly and 
calendar year-end payroll forms and tax returns. These items may be necessary in the event the taxing authority 
examines or challenges your returns. These records should be kept for at least seven years. Your copy of the 
payroll forms and tax returns should be retained indefinitely. 

In preparing the payrolls, payroll forms, and tax returns, we rely on your representation that you understand and 
have complied with these documentation requirements. You are responsible for the proper recording of 
transactions in the books of accounts, for the safeguarding of assets, and for the substantial accuracy of your 
financial records. 

All of the records that you provide to us to prepare your payrolls and related forms and tax returns will be returned 
to you after our use. Our working papers, including any copies of your records that we chose to make, are our 
property and will be retained by us in accordance with our established records retention policy. This policy states, 
in general, that we will retain our working papers for a period of seven years. After this period expires, our working 
papers and files will be destroyed. Furthermore, physical deterioration or catastrophic events may shorten the 
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time our records are available. The working papers and files of our firm are not a substitute for the records of the 
entity. 

Tax consulting services 

This SOW also covers tax consulting services that may arise for which the entity seeks our consultation and advice, 
both written and oral, that are not the subject of a separate SOW. These additional services are not included in 
our fees for the preparation of the payroll and related federal and state forms and tax returns. 

We will base our tax analysis and conclusions on the facts you provide to us, and will not independently verify 
those facts. We will review the applicable tax law, tax regulations, and other tax authorities, all of which are 
subject to change. At your request, we will provide a memorandum of our conclusions. Written advice provided 
by us is for the entity’s information and use only and is not to be provided to any third party without our express 
written consent. 

Unless we are separately engaged to do so, we will not continuously monitor and update our advice for 
subsequent changes or modifications to the tax law and regulations, or to the related judicial and administrative 
interpretations. 

Communications and confidentiality 

CLA will hold the information supplied by the entity to us in confidence and CLA will not disclose it to any other 
person or party, unless the entity authorizes us to do so, it is published or released by the entity, or it becomes 
publicly known or available other than through disclosure by us, or disclosure is required by law. This 
confidentiality provision does not prohibit us from disclosing your information to one or more of our affiliated 
companies in order to provide services that you have requested from us or from any such affiliated company. Any 
such affiliated company shall be subject to the same restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as 
apply to us. 

The Internal Revenue Code contains a limited privilege for confidentiality of tax advice between you and our firm. 
In addition, the laws of some states likewise recognize a confidentiality privilege for some accountant-client 
communications. You understand that CLA makes no representation, warranty or promise, and offers no opinion 
with respect to the applicability of any confidentiality privilege to any information supplied or communications 
you have with us, and, to the extent that we follow instructions from you to withhold such information or 
communications in the face of a request from a third party (including a subpoena, summons or discovery demand 
in litigation), you agree to hold CLA harmless should the privilege be determined not to apply to particular 
information or communications. 

Consent to send you publications and other materials  

For your convenience, CLA produces a variety of publications, hard copy and electronic, to keep you informed 
about pertinent business and personal financial issues. This includes published articles, invitations to upcoming 
seminars, webinars and webcasts, newsletters, surveys, and press releases. To determine whether these materials 
may be of interest to you, CLA will need to use your tax return information. Such tax information includes the 
entity name and address as well as the business and financial information you provided to us. 

By signing and dating this SOW, you authorize CLA to use the information that you provide to CLA during the 
preparation of your tax returns to determine whether to offer you relevant materials. Your consent is valid until 
further notice. If you do not wish to authorize such use, please strike out this paragraph prior to signing the SOW. 
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Legal compliance 

The entity agrees to assume sole responsibility for full compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules 
or regulations, and reporting obligations that apply to the entity or the entity’s business, including the accuracy 
and lawfulness of any reports the entity submits to any government regulator, authority, or agency. The entity 
also agrees to be solely responsible for providing legally sufficient substantiation, evidence, or support for any 
reports or information supplied by the entity to any governmental or regulatory body, or for any insurance 
reimbursement in the event that the entity is requested to do so by any lawful authority. CLA, its successors, 
affiliates, officers, and employees do not assume or undertake any duty to perform or to be responsible in any 
way for any such duties, requirements, or obligations. 

Agreement 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms and 
provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign below and 
return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and 
agreement with, this SOW. 

 

Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
 
ICLM_IntSignature:1 
Jason Carroll, CPA 
Principal 
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com ICLM_IntSignature:2 
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Enclosures 

Response: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Denargo Market Metro District No. 1. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Signature  
 
 
____________________________________________  
Title 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Date 

 

 
 

ICLM_ExtSignature:1 
 

ICLM_ExtSignature:2 
 
 
ExtDate2 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

CALLING A REGULAR ELECTION FOR DIRECTORS 

MAY 3, 2022 

A. The terms of the offices of Directors Jones, Smith and Wenskoski shall expire 
upon the election of their successors at the regular election, to be held on May 3, 2022 
(“Election”), and upon such successors taking office. 

B. In accordance with the provisions of the Special District Act (“Act”) and the 
Uniform Election Code (“Code”), the Election must be conducted to elect three (3) Directors to 
serve until the second regular election, to occur May 6, 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Denargo 
Market Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) of the City and County of Denver, Colorado: 

1. Date and Time of Election.  The Election shall be held on May 3, 2022, between 
the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, Code, and 
other applicable laws.  At that time, three (3) Directors shall be elected to serve until the second 
regular election, to occur May 6, 2025. 

2. Precinct.  The District shall consist of one (1) election precinct for the 
convenience of the eligible electors of the District. 

3. Conduct of Election.  The Election shall be conducted as an independent mail 
ballot election in accordance with all relevant provisions of the Code.  The Designated Election 
Official shall have on file, no later than fifty-five (55) days prior to the Election, a plan for 
conducting the independent mail ballot Election. 

4. Designated Election Official.  Matt Cohrs shall be the Designated Election 
Official and is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with any action necessary or 
appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution and of the Act, Code or other 
applicable laws.  The Election shall be conducted in accordance with the Act, Code and other 
applicable laws.  Among other matters, the Designated Election Official shall appoint election 
judges as necessary, arrange for the required notices of election (either by mail or publication) 
and printing of ballots, and direct that all other appropriate actions be accomplished. 

5. Call for Nominations.  The Designated Election Official shall provide Call for 
Nominations as required under Section 1-13.5-501, C.R.S., as applicable. 

6. Absentee Ballot Applications.  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN, pursuant to 
Section 1-13.5-1002, C.R.S., that applications for and return of absentee ballots may be filed 
with the Designated Election Official of the District, c/o Special District Management Services, 
Inc., 141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150, Lakewood, Colorado 80228, between the hours of 8:00 
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a.m. and 5:00 p.m., until the close of business on the Tuesday immediately preceding the 
Election (April 26, 2022). 

7. Self-Nomination and Acceptance Forms.  Self-Nomination and Acceptance 
Forms are available and can be obtained from Matt Cohrs, the Designated Election Official for 
the District, c/o Special District Management Services, Inc., 141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150, 
Lakewood, Colorado 80228; Tele: 303-987-0835. 
 

8. Cancellation of Election.  If the only matter before the electors is the election of 
Directors of the District and if, at 5:00 P.M. on March 1, 2022, the sixty-third day prior to the 
regular election, there are not more candidates than offices to be filled at the Election, including 
candidates timely filing affidavits of intent, the Designated Election Official shall cancel the 
Election and declare the candidates elected.  Notice of such cancellation shall be published and 
posted in accordance with law. 

9. Severability.  If any part or provision of this Resolution is adjudged to be 
unenforceable or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
provisions of this Resolution, it being the Board of Director’s intention that the various 
provisions hereof are severable. 

10. Repealer.  All acts, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, of the Board of 
Directors which are inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed to the 
extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 

11. Effective Date.  The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect as of the date 
adopted and approved by the Board of Directors of the District. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  
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RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED NOVEMBER 16, 2021. 

DENARGO MARKET METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

By:  
 President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
Secretary 
 



To: Contact:SDMS Robert Graham

Denargo Market Metro District Detention Pond Maintenance 2022Project Name: Bid Number:

Fax: 303-987-2032Lakewood, CO 80228

Address: 141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 Phone: 303-987-0835

Project Location: 2525 Wewatta Wy, Denver, CO Bid Date: 8/9/2021

Addendum #: 0

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem Description Estimated Quantity

2.00 EACH $4,500.00 $9,000.00Cleaning And Off Site Disposal Of Sediment, Trash, Weeds, Vegetation
Including Trees Up To 2" Cal.
Cleaning Of The Pond, Trickle Channel, Forebay, Micropool, Well
Screens, Restrictor Plate And Orifice Plate Of The Outlet Structure.

Total Bid Price: $9,000.00

Notes:
• If a third mid season treatment is required it will be billed at the same unit rate.
• This proposal does not include Restoration or Rehabilitation scopes of work.
• This bid does not include the handling or disposal of bio hazardous materials.
• This bid does not include removal of abandon vehicles, equipment or illegally disposed of materials. 
• This bid does not include pest, mosquito or or algae treatment or control.
• No work is included in this proposal unless specifically identified above.
• This bid does not include soil import, soil export, soil placement, or grading.
• This bid does not include traffic control.
• This bid does not include engineering, permits or testing.
• This bid does not include surveying or layout.
• This bid does not include a bond.  
• Additional mobilizations will be charged at the unit price.
• Required job training.  If required training is not disclosed at the time of estimate, labor time needed for training will be charged at a T&M rate.
• Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) has not been included in this bid. If enrollment in an Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) is

required, a deduction in contract value is not allowed.
• Any fees for billing or project management platforms such as Textura are not included in this proposal and will be billed as an additional cost to the 

project.
• The work in this bid is not subject to retention.
• This proposal is good for 60 days following the date given on the proposal.
• Consolidated Divisions, Inc. dba CDI| ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRACTOR

An Equal Opportunity Employer

Payment Terms:

Payment due 30 days from invoice.

ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and 
are hereby accepted.

Buyer:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Consolidated Divisions, Inc Dba CDI 
Environmental Contractors

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Cory France

303-501-5697   coryf@cdi-services.com

Page 1 of 1



Proposal for Extra Work at

Denargo Market Metro District

October 28, 2021

Page 1 of 2

Denver, CO  80216

Lakewood, CO  80228

c/o SDMSI 141 Union Ave Ste 150

3200 Denargo St Denargo Market Metro District

Matt Cohrs

Billing Address

To

ContactDenargo Market Metro District

Project Description

Project Name

Property Address

Property Name

Rock Park Area

grade and add rock in areas marked on map

Scope of Work

Material/DescriptionUoM/SizeQTY

grade bedsLUMP SUM1.00

Filter Fabric InstalledSQUARE FEET15,660.00

1-1/2" Black  Granite -  TON Rock/Gravel InstalledTON195.00

Service Line

400400468JOB#

SO# 7657325

130

For internal use only

$38,930.43Total Price

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 2333 W Oxford Ave, Sheridan, CO 80110-4340 ph. (303) 761-9262 fax (303) 761-9023

This proposal is valid for 60 days unless otherwise approved by BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.



October 28, 2021
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141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 

Lakewood, CO 80228-1898 
303-987-0835 ● Fax: 303-987-2032 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
TO:    Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Christel Gemski  
  Executive Vice-President  
 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
RE:  Notice of 2022 Rate Increase 
 
 
  In accordance with the Management Agreement (“Agreement”) between the 
District and Special District Management Services, Inc. (“SDMS”), at the time of the annual 
renewal of the Agreement, the hourly rate described in Article III for management and all 
services shall increase by the CPI (5.28%) per hour.   
 
  We hope you will understand that it is necessary to increase our rates due to 
increasing gas and operating costs along with new laws and rules implemented by our 
legislature.   
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